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STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

INTRODUCTION

The Directors submit their strategic report of Unilever U.K. Central Resources lelted (also referred to
s “the Company”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Company is one of the entities within the "Unilever Group". In this context the term "Unilever
Group" and "Companies of the Unilever Group" or "Group companies" means companies where
Unilever PLC, either directly or mdrrectly, is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the Company and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
-Company.- Companies in which Group companies have sugmfrcant mfluence but not control are
~ classified as "Associated compames :

4 BUSINESS REVIEW

The prmcupal activity of the Company is to provide admlmstratlve research and development

managément, and support services to other companies of the Unllever Group. The Company will

continue W|th this activity in the foreseeable future.

The Company’s proflt for the financial year was £185,600,165 as compared to a loss of £2,263, 585 in
2021

Effective 2021, the Company has entered into an agreement by virtue of which the Company would

"be charged for certain unrecovered costs pertaining to the Home care/Beauty and personal care.
(HC/BPC) division by Unilever Europe Business Centre B.V (“the agreemeént”). These unrecovered costs
represent under recoveries/service results of centralized Unilever functions that benefit the entire
v éroup (global services) such as a) central services - Leadership, marketing, customer development,
supply chain, finance, HR etc. and b) Uniops (Unilever Operations) - which represents services to'enable
growth through technology, data and services intrinsically linked across Unilever. These unrecovered
costs, perfaining to the HC/BPC division, would ‘be éllocated and'charged based on a divisional split
that represent the underlying divisions which have generated these -under
recoveries. - '

It was recognised already at the time of entering into the agreement that the Company might not be

the most -appropriate entity to bear these results from a financial and taxation perspeetive. In

consideration of this, the transactions transferring the unrecovered costs to the Company were

included in a request for advance tax certainty from the UK and Netherlands tax authorities in" a

Bilateral Advance Pricing Agreement (“BAPA”) application filed on'14 Apnl 2022. In this application it

was mentioned that it is the intention that as part of that BAPA submission an agreement would be

reached with respect to the exact company(les) that should receive the unrecovered costs .
aforementioned.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date on 4 Jan 2023, the Company entered into memorandum of
understanding with Unilever PLC and other affected parties stating that if the outcome of the
agreement to be reached in the context of this BAPA, or at such earlier moment as mutulally agreed
and determined by the parties to the agreement, that an entity(ies) other than the Company is the
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most appropriate entity(ies) to bear the services results, then in addition to all prospective results
being transferred to that entity(ies) by UEBC going forward, all results previously transferred by UEBC
to the Company effective 1 January 2021 under the agreements WI|| be transferred to that entity(ies)
as well. : : :

In 25'™ September 2023, based .on an agreement with Unilever PLC and other effected parties, it has
been agreed that that all of the unrecovered costs in the aforementioned agreement would in the end
be allocated to Unilever PLC and none would be borne by the Company and hence no charge on
account of unrecovered costs has been recorded in the financial statements. Additionally, an amount
of £116 million booked on account of this agreement in FY 2021 has been reversed i in the current year.

The Directors con5|der that, in the conditions prevailing during the year the development of the
Company's business and its financial position at the end of the year was satisfactory. The Directors do
not-expect any development in the Companys business in the coming year which is significantly
different from its present activities.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The management ofithe business and the execution of the Company’s strategy are subject to a number
of risks. The key business risks and uncertainties affectlng the- Company relate to the deterioration of
the underlying businesses.

" The Company’s uItlmate parent undertaking, Unilever PLC, |ncludes the Company in its consolidated
- financial statements. Further discussion of the principal risk of the business, and how they are:
managed in the context of Unilever Group, is provided in'thé consolidated financial statements of
Unilever Group: These statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
- Standards and provided in the published Unilever Group Annual Report for the year ended 31

December 2022, available at www.unilever.com. :

' FINANCIAL i(EY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Given the straightforward nature of the business, the Com'pa'ny’s.Directors are of the ‘opinion that
analysis using key performance indicators is not necessary for an understanding of the development,
_performance, or position of the business.

HUMAN RIGHTS

The Group’s Responsible Sourcing Policy, updated in 2017, helps improve the lives of the people in
supply chains by aligning purchasing standards with our commitment to human rights. ‘

The Unilever Group works closely with other companies and non-governmental organisations to
continuously improve the way it applies these principles, with a focus on four key areas: communities,
security, labour rights, and supply chain. The Unilever Group has systems and processes in place for
managing projects, contracting and procurement recruitment and ernployment security and social
performance and requires all Group companies and. contractors to respect the human rights of their
workforce and neighbourmg communities. : .
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SECTION 172 STATEMENT

The Company acts as a services and research company within the Unilever Group and therefore, has

_direct relationships with employees and other Unilever Group Companies. During the accounting year
under review the Company has considered its activities and decisions in relatlon to acting in good faith
to promote the success of the Company

In2022, the company continued to promote the success of the Compan'y'by appointing the appropriate
directors to the Company. It is important that a Human’ Resources -individual is.a director of the
: Company, ‘due to the Company being an employing entity. The Company engages with employees by
having directors from each site on the board. The directors speak to their site employees on a regular
basis and there is a pulse survey to obtain employees views and to ensure that the Company considers
their interests. '

The Companies Board participates in quarterly meeting to consider any decisions that may impact the
Company in the long term. The Board discusses UK geography matters with other operating UK boards
to ensure that there is extensive discussion on the matters brought to the meeting.

The Company also took into consideration the long-term impacts of its operations of the business and
how it would impact the community. This included giving grants to éupport suppliers to ensure a ..
positive social impact, as well as donatlons to charities which are referenced within the Directors’
~ Report of these annual accounts.

The Company has the environment at the heart of its purpose to make ‘sustainable living common
place. This has been supported within the corporate governance arrangements on page 7 which .
highlight how ;ustainability as at the heart of the Company’s purpose and leadership-

- The Company approved the financial accounts for the year ended 31 December 2021 which gave our
stakeholders a view of the current financial position of the Company. The accounts were independently
audited by KPMG LLP which ensured that the accounts had been audited by an independent party. No ‘
other business activity that would impact our stakeholders took place W|th|n the Company during
2022 .

The Company is subject to Unilever’'s Code of Business Principles and has'applied these to its
operations and this ensures a high standard of conduct.

26/09/23

' This .report wasapproved by the Board on and signed on its behalf by

Mr. R J Seabrook on _26/09/23

Roger Seabrook.

Mr. R J Seabrook
Director

. Reglstered Office: Unilever House, 100 VICtOI‘Ia Embankment, London, ECAY ODY United Kingdom
Company registration number: 00029140 :
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_ The Directors present their report and the financial staternents for the year ended 31 December 2022.

" The Directors’ report and audlted financial statements of the Company have been prepared in,
accordance with Companies Act 2006. ' :

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

: " v : .

The principal activity- of the Company is to-provide administrative, research and development,’

‘ 'management and support services to othercompanles of the Unilever Group. There was no sugmficant
.change in the prmcnpal activities of the Company durmg the year.

'RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS _

' - The Profit for the year, after taxation, ame'unted to.£185,60’Q,165 (2021: I.oss of £2,i63,585).
"No dividend was paid dur.ing the year (2021: £Nil).
| FUTURE OUTLOOK

Besides the developments about the agreement with UEBC, no significant change in the business of
the Company has taken place during.the year or is expected in the immediately foreseeable future.
" The Directors do not expect any development in the Company’s business in the coming year which is
significantly different from its present activities. and there are no immediate plans to liquidate the
Company. The Directors believe that the balances held will be realised at their reported carrying value
in the normal course of business and so the fmancual statements continue to be prepared on a going
concern basis.

DIRECTORS
- The Directors who held office during the year were:

Mr. C W Jones
Mr. R J Seabrook
Mr. R M Sharp
Mr.J A H Berkeley
Mr. A Sztehlo

“RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES

A large proportion of the central research and engineering resources of Unilever are based in the
United Kingdom (UK) and operated by the Company. Our Research and Development function actively
- searches for ways in which to translate the trends in consumer preference and taste into new
“technologies for incorporation into future products. The two largest units are the research laboratories
‘at Port Sunlight, in Merseyside, and Colworth laboratories, in Bedfordshire, in total having over 1,355
scientific staff. These units work closely with associated research laboratories in the Netherlands,
* China, India and the United States, and with.individual Company development departments
" throughout the world to provide a firm technical base for the improvement, innovation and safety
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assurance of Unilever products and processes. Expenditure on research and development during the
year was £207,138,172 (2021: £191,929,332). '

POLITICAL AND CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Company made charitable donations amounting to £1,013,384 (2021: £2,225,727). The main
charitable donations were primarily made to NC3Rs Annual sponsorship £25,000 (2021: Nil), University
of Oxford £30,000 (2021: Nil), Women Safety Program £10, 000 (2021: £298,085), Alzheimer’s and
Autism society £30,000 (2021- Nil), Payal Workshop Nil (2021: £267,700), Ellen MacArthur Foundation .
Nil (2021: £150 000) Global Impact UK Nil (2021: £187,365),. UNICEF Nil (2021: £73 ,560). These -
donations were all social investments — cash payments for 2022 and 2021. No political contributions _
were made during the year (2021: £Nil). - :

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

“The management of the business and the execution of the Company’s strategy are subject to a number

of risks. The key business risks and uncertainties affecting the Company relate to the deterioration of
the underlying businesses. Additional risks that this Company and the Unilever Group are subject to,
and how they are managed, in the context of the Unilever Group as a whole is provided in the Unilever
Group published annual report for the year ended 31 December 2022. The Group report does not form
part of this report. :

The Com pany's operations expose it to a variety of financial risks t.hat" include credit risk, liquidity risk,
currency risk and pension risk. The Company has specific policies for the management of these risks.

The Compahy manages these risks as follows:

Credit r/sk
The majority of outstanding debtor balances relates to an amount ‘outstanding from Unilever Europe

4 Busmess Centre and amounts due from other Unilever Group undertakmgs.

Impalrment for trade receivables is caIcuIated for specific receuvables with known or antncmated issues

* affecting the likelihood of recovery and for balances past due with a probablllty of default based on
- historical data-as well as relevant forward- -looking information. The Company does not consider the.
fair value of amounts receivable from group companies to be significantly different from their carrying

values prior to recording the provision for impairment, which is computed based on a robust credit
rating mechanism and using the expected credit loss model. The historical experience of collecting
these balahces supported by the level of default confirms that the credit risk is low. ’

.quwdity risk

The Unilever Group ensures, by- means of giving Ioans or makmg capital injections, that the Company
has sufficient funds avanlable to fund its operatlons : : - T

Further discussion of these risks and uncertainties, and how they are managed in the cohtext of the
Unilever Group as a whole, is provided in the publish‘ed Unilever Group Annual Report.
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Currency risk
The Company uses foreign exchange derivatives to hedge the currency risk. The Company is. amongst
others exposed to the currency risk in relation to the monthly Euro receipts from Unilever Europe

. Business Center BV. These receipts relate to the existing pooling agreement whereby Unilever Europe

Business Center BV and the company agreed to share the international costs.

PenSIon r/sk

In the Unjted Kingdom, Unilever offers a hybrld pension plan with a defined benefit component which
is exposed to movements in interest rates, fluctuating values of underlying investments and increased
life expectancy. Changes in any or all of these inputs could potentially increase the cost to Unilever of
funding the schemes and therefore have an adverse impact on profitability and cash flow. The current
- «total pension profit and loss charge for 2022 is £27,652,000 (2021: £92,671,000). This relates to
operating cost of £73,493,000 (2021: £109,793,000) and finance income of £45,840,000 (2021:
£17,112,000) (Expected return on assets of £224,430,000 (2021; £155,118,000 and interest costs of
. £178,590,000 (2021: £137,996 ,000)). Changes in assumptlons can impact the profit and loss account
and statement of other comprehenswe income.

Our pension inVestment standards require us to invest across a range of equities, bonds, property,
alternative assets, and cash such that the failure of any single investment will not have a material

_ impact on the overall value of assets. The majority of our assets, iincluding those held in our ‘pooled’
investment vehicle, Univest, are. managed by external fund managers and are regularly monitored by
pension trustees and central pensions and investment teams. : ~

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS :

The Company’s land and buildings are used for providing services and research in the United Kingdom.
The Company’s assets are not held for resale. The Directors consider that the difference between their
market value and the value at which they are included in the balance sheet is not significant enough
to be drawn to the attentlon of the shareholders ’ :

' COMPANY'S POLICY FOR PAYMENT OF CREDIT_ORSl '

-~ The Company S pollcy for the payment of its supphers is to agree the terms of payment inadvance and,
provided a suppher fulfils the agreement, to pay promptly in accordance with those terms.

_ The ratio, expressed in days, between the amounts invoiced to the Company by its suppliers in the
year and the amounts owed to its trade creditors at the end of the year was 149 days (2021: 156 days).

© COMPANY’S POLICY TOWARDS COMMUNITY & ENVIRONMENT

Equality and inclusion,.human rights within our operations and supply chain and health and wellbeing

are important issues for our stakeholders. Water scarcity and climate. change are also challenges for
" many people in developing and emerging markets — reflectmg the mterconnectlv:ty between the
enwronment and socnety : :
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Our\‘ Ieadefship engage with NGOs and policymakers to drive sysfem change. Unilever ‘Group’s>A

Leadership Executives (ULE), including those on the Board, each own relationships and advocacy ‘ '

around key issues. Unilever Group’s Chief Supply Chain Officer for example, is a part of the World'
Economic Forum (WEF) community. This year, as part of our materiality process, we evaluated a range

. of inputs from stakeholders to understand the most pressmg societal issues and where we can make

.a difference. : '

VG

Our Unilever Sustainable Living Plan (USLP) Advisory Couneil — eight independent external specialists
in sustainability — guide and critique the development of our strategy. They engaged with the Group’s
Corporate Responsibility Committee (CRC) on key strategic sustainability issues during the year.

| COMPANY-'S POLICY fOW{ARDS CUSTOMERS

‘Since majority of customers are internal Unilever Group Companles there is no specific policy towards
internal customers : : .

COMPANY’S REPUTATION FOR HIGH STANDARDS OF BUSINESS CONDUCT

" Unilever’s brands and reputation are valuable assets and the way in which we operate, contribute to
~ society, and engage with the world around us is always under-scrutiny both internally and externally.

~Acting in an ethical manner, consistent with the expectations of customers, consumers,.and other
" stakeholders, is essential for the protection of the reputation of Unilever and its brands.

A key element of our. ethical approach to business is to reduce inequality and promote fairness. Our
activities touch the lives of millions of people, and it is our responsibility to protect their rights and _
help them live well. The safety of our employees and the people and communities we work with'is -
critical. Failure to meet these high standards could result in damage to Unilever’s corporate reputation
and business results. : :

" CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, under The Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations -
2018, the Company has not applied any Corporate Governance Code. Although no specific Corporate
Governance Code has been adopted by the Company, it is believed that the policies of the Unilever
Group adopted by the ‘Company ensures strong Corporate Governance. The titles from the Wates
Principles have been used in our Corporate Governance Statement to ensure that the Company is
. following the same Corporate Governance themes of all companies that adopt the Wates Principles.

- Purpose and leadership

The Company was incorporated in 1889, the Company undertakes research and 5upplies services. We
make some of the world s best-known brands — all are on a journey to reducing their environmental
footprlnt and increasing their posntlve social impact. Therefore, the Unilever Sustainable Living Plan is
at the heart of the Company’s purpose. -
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The Company has adopted the Umlever Group s purpose ‘and in turn our shareholder’s vision to grow
our business, whilst decoupling our environmental footprint from our growth and increasing our
positive social impact delivered. through the Sustainable Living Plan. Our purpose is to deliver long-
term growth and sustainable value creation. We are developing new technologies to reduce the carbon
footprint, plastic waste, and water use, and increase the biodegradable and sustainable ingredients

. associated with our products. For example, we will be replacmg the crudeoil and other fossil fuels used
to make some of our chemlcals wuth renewable and recycled carbon.

. The .Board of the Company allows interactions through internal communicatidns and cascades the
dialogue of our shareholder’s 'purpos'e to the employees of the Company. The Board promotes regular
engagement yvit\h._employees,'through site_emails, corporate intranet, and town hall meetings with

_senior leaders to ensure that employees are aware of'important information regarding the Company.

Board composition

The Board composition is made up of directors who_head the Company’s sites across the UK or hold
sénior positions within those sites. These -directors specialise in the core areas of business. This
includes Human Resources, Finance and Research.and Development The directors have an extensive
knowledge of their respective fields and bring a wealth of background and expertise with regards to
the business. ‘

The Board discusses geography. subjects with other operating UK Unilever boards which creates a
~ constructive discussion in relation to the subjects which are brought to these meetings. This facilitates
"and helps effective decision making due to different viewpoints being discussed.

Directors Responsibilities

There are-clear lines of accountability and responsibility when there is a decision made by the
' Compeny All decisions are made in line with the Unilever Group internal authorities. The directors also
consider their directors duties, details of the stakeholder engagement under Section 172 of the .
- . Companies Act 2006 as descrlbed in page 2. ‘ :

The Board attends a corporate governance committee made up of the Board and other directors of -
Unilever UK subsidiaries. There are quarterly méetings of the committee which cover governance
matters, This ensures that the governance remains fit for purpose by regularly challenging the status
quo The committee meetings adhere to the terms of reference which have been approved by the -
Board of the Company.

AOp"portunity and risk

The Company has an embedded risk management approach with clear roles, responsibilities, and

" - authorities to ensure that all opportunities are robustly reviewed and to ensure that no gaps are

‘ missed. Through this approach the Company ensures that it is prepared for any risks that it might face

8
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_in the short and long term. This help ensure -that there is good corporate governance within the
Company. Our Code of Business Principles ensures that the Company s principles are followed by the
employees of the Company.

Remuneration

The Company follows the remuneration policy of the Unilever Group Directors and employee s
remuneration is based on clear structures and poI|C|es available to all employees in the Unllever
Group S mtranet '

Stakeholder relationships and engagement

With every decision that the Company makes, the Directors acknowledge their duties under Section
172 of the Companies Act 2006 and consider the stakeholders of the. Company These stakeholder
» engagements as described in page 2

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT

The Company recognises the changing world of work'and the importance of employee engagement.
The Company has continued and extended its support of conSuItation during the year. Staff are located
principally at the Head Office buildings in London and at the Port Sunlight and Colworth laboratories. .

In particular the Unileyer GroUp promote‘s the-following:~

- & Reshaping how we work mcludmg flexuble and agrle workmg, lifelong learning and I|stemng to our
employees; :
Acting with integrity through our Code of Busmess Prmcrples and other polncues and
Safety and wellbemg of employees :

The Unilever Group is aISO working towards_ evolving the'company culture through:

e Purpose flrst workmg with employees helpmg them to define thelr purpose and how they can
reach it in their working life. : :
e Fit for the future; S|mpI|fy|ng and flattenmg our mternal structure and worklng in more networked
ways.
. Workplace for everyone; becoming-a dlverse and mclusrve organisation.

The Company and its subsidiaries are working towards these aims in their operations. .
EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES
~“Unilever Group.aims to have leading equal opportunities policies and practices. The Company has a

"published equal opportunities policy and a detailed code of practice in support ofthis. Progress is
regularly monitored. The Company’s policy continues to be the application of equal opportunity
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prmcnples to the seIectlon training and career development of all. applicants and employees
irrespective of gender, race, ethnic origin, marltalstatus religion, or disability.

With respect to disabled people, the-Company’s medical officers provide appropriate advice to help
with the successful achievement of these objectives, particularly regarding physical facilities, which .
need to be made available at the workplace. Unilever Group is also committed to providing continuing

employment of employees who become disabled whilst working for the Company. _

The Company offers a range of flexnble working conditions to assist employees in balancmg work and’
outside commitments. There are also schemes such as career breaks, six months: paid parental. leave
and a range of childcare support initiatives to support employees with families. :

Any employee who becomes disabled is encoureged to remain in the Company’s employment, in the
same job if this is practicable. If a change of job.is necessary, such an employee is considered for any
'suutable alternatlve work which is available, and any necessary training is arranged.

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The. Directors, are responsible for preparing the Stfategic Report, the Directors' Report, and the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that

‘law they have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK accounting standards
and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting
Standard-101.’‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’. Under Company law the: Directors must not approve
the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period.

in preparin'g'thbese financial statements, the Directors are required to:

® select suitable accounting policies and then apply'them consistently;

* ' make judgements.and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;. '

" e _ state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; : :

e assess the company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as appllcable matters
related to going concern; and

] use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or
‘ to cease operatlons, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

‘The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate ai:oou nting records that are sufficient to show and

explain the Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
~ position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to
"enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them
to safeguard the assets of the company and to prevent and detéct fraud and other irregularities.-

10
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" DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITOR
The Directors who held oﬁice_at the date of approval of this Directors' Report confirm that:

e 5o far as they are each aware, there is no relevant audlt mformatlon of Wthh the Company’s

- auditor is unaware; and . : : ' .

e each Director has taken all the steps that he/she’ ought to have taken as a Director to make
himself/herself aware of any relevant audit mformatlon and to establish that the Company s
auditor is aware of that information. :

AUDITOR

Pursuant to Section 487 ofthe Companies Act 2006, the auditor will be deemed to be reappomted and_ :
KPMG LLP WI|| therefore. contmue in offlce

126/09/23 .

This report was approved by the Board on _ and signed on its behalf by

Mr. R J Seabrook on _26/09/23

" Mr. RJ Seabrook
Director

Registered Office: Unilever House, 100 Victoria Embankment, London, EC4Y oDy, United Kingﬂom

. Company registration number:' 00029140
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. INDEPENDENT AUDITOR S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF UNILEVER U. K CENTRAL RESOURCES LIMITED

Opinion ‘ '

We have audited the financial statements of Unilever U.K. Central Resources Limited (“the Company”)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 which comprise the e Profit and Loss Account, Statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Eqmty and related notes,
mcludmg the accounting policies in note 1.

. In our opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the Company'’s affairs as at 31 December 2022 and of its
profit for the year then ended; - . ' '

e have been properly prepared in accordance W|th UK accountlng standards, including FRS 101
Reduced Dlsclosure Framework; and :

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

\\,

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)") and
applicable law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities
under, and are independent of the Company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including
the FRC Ethical Standard. We beheve that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and
appropriate basis for our opinion:

~ Going concern

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend
to liquidate the Company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the Company’s
financial position means that this is realistic. They-have also concluded that there are no material
uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over-its ability to continue as a going concern for
at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements (“the going concern period”).

We used our knowledge of the Company, its industry, and the general economic environment to
identify the inherent risks to its business model and analysed how those risks might affect the
Company’s financial resources or ability to continue operations over the going concern period. The
risks that we considered most likely to adversely affect the Company’s available financial resources
over this period was the ability of the ultimate parent Unilever Plc to be able to financially support the
company, as mentioned in the Going concern section in note 1.

We considered whether the going concern disclosure in note 1 to the financial statements gives a full
and accurate description of the Director’s assessment of going concern.

Our conclusions based on this work:

e we consider that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of
~ the financial statements is appropriate; ‘

* we have not identified and concur with the directors’ assessment that there is not, a material
~uncertainty related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant
doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for the gomg concern period..

o - we found the going concern disclosure i in note 1to be acceptable
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT ‘
TO THE MEMBERS OF UNILEVER U.K. CENTRAL RESOURCES LIMITED

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result
in outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were
made, the above conclusions are not a guarantee that the Company will continue in operation.

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect -

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

- To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (“fraud risks”) we assessed events or conditions
that could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit
fraud. Our risk assessment procedures included: : -

e Enquiring of directors and inspection of policy documentation as to the Company's high-level
policies and procedures to prevent and detect fraud and the -Company’s channel for -
“whistleblowing”, as well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged
fraud.’ ' S :

¢ Reading Board minutes. -
e Considering remuneration incentive schemes and perfqrmance )target's for manégement.
e Using analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected reIa'tvionships.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any
indications .of fraud throughout the audit. ‘

As required by auditing standards and taking into account overall knowledge of-the control
environment, we perform procedures to address the risk of management override of controls, in
particular the risk that management may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries.
On this. audit we do not believe there is a fraud risk related to revenue recognition because the
-Company is a cost centre of the Group, majority of the revenue is generated from the Group instead
of external third parties. -

We did not identiﬂ any additional fraud risks.

In determining the audit procedures we took into account the results of cur evaluation and testing of
the operating effectiveness of Company-wide fraud risk management controls.

We also performed procedures including identifying journal entries and.other adjustments to test
-based on risk ‘criteria and comparing the identified. entries to supporting documentation. These
included those posted by senior finance management/ those posted by a user with fewer than four
postings per annum and those posted to cash in unusual accounts combinations.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement related to compliance with_laws and
regulations : ' ' :

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect
on the financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience, through discussion
with the directors (as required by auditing standards), and from inspectio'n of the Company’s
regulatory and legal correspondence and dis;c-uAssed with the directors the policies and procedures
regarding compliance with laws and regulations. ‘ '
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF UNILEVER U.K. CENTRAL RESOURCES LIMITED

We commumcated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any
indications of non- complrance throughout the audit

The potential effect of these laws and regulatlons on the financial statements varies con5|derably

Firstly, the Company ‘is subject to laws ,and regulations that directly affect the financial statements
“including financial reporting legislation (including related companies legislation), distributable profits
legislation and taxation legislation and we assessed the extent of compliance with these laws and
regulatlons as part of our procedures on the related financial statement items. -

Secondly, the Company is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-

compliance could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for

instance through the imposition of fines or litigation. We identified the following areas as those most

likely to have such an effect: health and safety, anti-bribery, employment law and GDPR (General Data

“Protection Regulation) recognising the nature of the Company’s activities. Audltlng standards limit the

reduired audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations to enquiry of,
the directors and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any. Therefore' if a breach of

operational regulations is not dlsclosed to us or evndent from reIevant correspondence an audit wull

not detect that breach ‘ :

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulatlon

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not. have
detected some material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly
planned and performed our-audit in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further
removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in .
the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited procedures reqmred by auditing
standards would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may

-involve collusion, forgery, intentionall‘omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
controls. Our audit procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible
for preventiné’ noh-compliance or fraud and cannot-be expected to detect non-compliance with all
laws and regulations. 4 : :

. Strategic report and directors’ report

The directors are responsible for the strategic report and the directors’ report. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover those reports and we do not express an audit opinion thereon.

~ Our responsibility is to read the strategic report and the directors’ report and, in doing so, consider
whether, based on our financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated
or inconsistent with the financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:

. ‘we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report and the directors’ report;

) inour opinlon the information glven in those reports for the financial year is con5|stent with the .
financial statements; and ’

e inour opinionthose reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.
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= . INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF UNILEVER U.K. CENTRAL RESOURCES LIMITED

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are requured to report to'you if, in our oplnlon

e adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audlt have not been
received from branches not V|5|ted by us; or

e the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
e we have not received all the information_and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects. .

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 10, the directors are responsible for: the
. preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such
internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosmg, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to Ilqmdate the Company or to cease
operatlons or have no realistic alternative but to do so. : :

Auditor's responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an
auditor’s report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
the financial statements.

.

A fuller’ description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC's website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. ' ' o ' '

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities .

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state.to- the
Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this . -
report, or for the opinions we have formed. : "
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: /@ﬁm&m
" sabira Datoo (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chari‘g‘red Accountants - |
15 Canada Sqﬁafe

" Canary Wharf -
London

- E14 5GL

- Date: 27/09/2023
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S Registered number: 00029140 .
UNILEVER U.K. CENTRAL RESOURCES LIMITED '

»

' PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT~ .
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

- Note 2022 | 2021

£000 ~ £000

Turnover 3 1,580,191 1,441,681
Administrative expenses 4 (1,402,665) (1,486,373)
Operating profit/(loss) - o 177,526 - ’ (44,692)
(Loss)/Profit on disposal of fixed assets - 8 (2,182). | 781
“Interest receivable and similar income 9 . 18,086 _ : 23,289
Interest payable and similar charges N 9 (41,596) - (1,208)
Other finance in‘come/(expenses) relatingto . . 18 © 45,840 - 16,894
pensions - , - ‘ o B _

Result from ordinary activities before taxation _ 197,674 (4,936) -
Takation on result from ordinary activities 10 - (12,074) . - 2,673
Profit/(Loss) for the financial year - 185,600 (2;263)
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Reglstered number: 00029140
. UNILEVER U.K. CENTRAL RESOURCES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

) . ‘ _ " Note 2022 2021
: : - £000 © £000
Profit/(Loss) for the year- ' . 185600 . ©(2,263)

Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified to proflt or Ioss .
Net actuarial (Ioss)/gams recognised on pensions 18 (890,948) 1,214,539

Deferred tax on pensions : i ‘ - 169,195 . (227,515)
Deferred tax on Global Performance Share PIan o 26 (206)
(‘GPSP’) L :
Deferred tax credlted/(charged) to OCl duetorate ' _ 53,430 (126,547)
change T L . '

(668,298) : 860,271

Items that are or may be reclasso‘/ed subsequently to

" profit or loss:

Cash flow hedges reclassed to proﬂt and loss ) (5,193) . 36,178

account , ) : ; .
Fair value gains / {losses) on.cash flow hedges : (51,116) ~ (3,339)
. - - (56,309) . 32,839
Deferred tax on cash flow hedges T 14,077 ' (7,531) "
: : : (42,232) 25,308
" Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year o - . (710,530) 885,579
' Totél comprehensivel(loss)/income for the yearv , ’ - . (524,930) i 883,316
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Reglstered number: 00029140
UNILEVER U.K. CENTRAL RESOURCES LIM|TED '

BALANCE SHEET

. AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022
Note 2022 ' 2021
- - £000 ’ £000
Fixed assets . : ) . .
Intangible assets . ’ o 11 462,527 e 448,229
Tangible assets : v B . 12 162,670 188,818
Investments o o ' ‘ 13 e 295
. 625,197 637,342
Current assets ]

- Stocks = 52" .57
Trade and other receivables (mcludmg £430 138, 610 (2021 14 733,073 413,736
£142,029,187) due after more than one year) ) : )

733,125 . 413,793
Current liabilities o : : :
Trade and other payables: Amounts falllng due within one year 16 (967,603) - . (1,606,107)
Provnssons for liabilities and other charges . 17 (33,115) (5,353)
Net current fiabilities ' _ . . ' (267,593) (1,197,667)
Total assets less current liabilities ) o 357,604 - (560,325) A

. Trade and other payébles: Amounts falling due after more than - . :

. “one year , A o o 16 . (2,422,410) " (1,840,391)
Provisions for liabilities and ,oth.er chargés ' 17- '. "(11,325) ' (12,525)
Net liabilities excludlng pensions and similar obhgatlons . (2,076,131) . T (2,413,241) ° '
liabilities - ' N
Pensions and similar obligation; liabilities ‘
Net pension assets for funded schemes in surplus - - - 18  .1,798,399 2,719,949
Net pension liability for unfunded schemes .o 18 (195,310) - (254,820)
Total pénsions and similar obllgatlons . : - 1,603,089 . - 2,465,129

: ‘Net (Ilabllmes)/Assets including pensnons and snmllar ' " (473,042) . 51,888
obligations liabilities : : g
Called up share capital : ' 20 100,000 ~~ 100,000

" Cash flow hedge reserve o N © (26,084) y 16,148
Profit and loss account ) ) : ' (546,958) "~ (64,260)
Shareholders' funds _ B " (473,042) " 51,888

; o .
This report was approved by the Board on 26/09/23 .

Mr. RJ Seabrook on __26/09/23

and signed on its behalf by

R@er@éaéﬁﬂé

Mr. RJ Seabrook"
Director
Registered Office: Unilever House, 100 Vlctona Embankment Ltondon, EC4Y ODY United Kingdom
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Registered number 00029140
* UNILEVER U. K CENTRAL RESOURCES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

~ Called up Cash flow Profit and Loss Total equity
share capital -hedge reserve . " Account ‘ -
£000 £000 - ©  £000 ' £000
" At 1 January 2022 100,000 . - 16,148 ' - (64,260) . . 51,888
Total cdmprehensive income
.-for the year » : ' ,
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - S - ' 185,600 185,600
Other comprehensive . - - (42,232) (668,298) (710,530}
income/ (expense) 3 ‘ A . '
Total comprehensive income/- ' - (42,232) {482,698) (524,930)
(expense) for the year : : .
At31 December 2022 - 100,000 - (26,084) (546,958) (473,042)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR 'END'ED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Called up Cash flow Profit and Loss - _ Totel equity

share capital hedge reserve Account -
£000 €000 - . = £000 £000
At 1 January 2021 _ 100,000 g '-(9,160) (922,268) ' (831,4‘28)
Total comprehensive i income
" for the year S - S .
~ (Loss) for the year : L - - (2,263) . (2,263)
_Other comprehensive income - 25,308. 860,271 - 885,579
Total comprehensnve mcome ’ » - . 25,308 ‘858,008 883,316
for the year S : ’ T
At 31 December 2021 A - 100,000 . 16,148 (64,260) 51,888

“Cash flow hedge reserve consists of. the cumulatlve exchange difference on the outstanding forward °
contracts used. to hedge the currency risk in relation to the monthly Euro receipts from Unilever Europe
Business Center B.V. for which cash flow hedge accounting is applied. This exchange difference is taken to
the Profit and Loss Account at the same time as the related cash flow impacts the. Profit and Loss Account.
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Registered number: 00029140
UNILEVER U.K. CENTRAL RESOURCES LIMITED :

'NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

11 .

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Unilever U.K Central Resou rces Limited (the “Company”) is a Private Compa ny limited by shares,
incorporated, domiciled and registered in England & Wales. The registered number.is 00029140

“and the registered address is Unilever House, 100 V|ctor|a Embankment, London, EC4Y ODY,
* United Klngdom :

The Company is ekempt by: virtue of Section 400 of the Companies Act 2006 from the

requirement ‘to prepare group financial statements. These financial statements present

information about the Company as an individual undertaking and not about its group.

These financial statements were prepared in accordance Wlth Financial Reportlng Standard 101
'‘Reduced Disclosure Framework' (“FRS 101”).

In preparing these financial statements, the Company applies the recognition, measurement and
disclosure requirements of International Accounting Standards (“UK-Adopted IFRS”), but makes
amendments where necessary in order to comply with Companies Act 2006 and has been set

- out below wherever advantages of the FRS 101 disclosure exemptions has been taken.

The Company’s -ultimate parent undertaking, Unilever PLC, includes the Company in its
consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements of Unilever Group are.
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and provided in the
published Unilever Group Annual Report, available at www,unilever.com.

In these financial statements, wherever applicable, the Company has applied the- exemptlons
avallable under FRS101i in respect of the: followmg disclosures:.

- Paragraphs 45(b) and 46 to 52 of IFRS 2, ‘Share-based payment’ (details of the number and

weighted-average exercise prices of share options, and how the fair value of goods or
services received was determined); ‘
- IFRS 7, ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’;

.- Paragraphs 91 to 99 of IFRS 13, ‘Fair value measurement’ (disclosure of valuatlon technlques

and inputs used for fair value measurement of assets and liabilities);

- Paragraph 38 of IAS 1, ‘Presentation of fmanaal statements’ comparative information

requirements in respect of:

(i) paragraph 79(a)(iv) of IAS 1 'Presentatcon of financial statements

(ii) .paragraph 73(e) of IAS 16 Property, plant and equipment’;’ ,

(iii) paragraph 118(e) of IAS 38 ‘Intangible assets’ (reconciliation between the carrymg
amount at the beginning and end of.the period); < -

- The following paragraphs of 1AS 1, ‘Presentation of financial statements

(i) 10(d) (statement of cash flows); :

(ii) 10(f) (a balance sheet as at the beginning of the preceding period when an entity applies
- an accounting policy retrospectively or makes a retrospective restatement of items in’
its financial statements, or when it reclassifies items in its financial statements);
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o ' ‘ Reglstered number 00029140
UNILEVER u. K CENTRAL RESOURCES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(iii) 16 (statement of compliance with all IFRS);

(iv) 38A (requirement to present a minimum of two statements for each of the primary
financial statements, including cash flow statements and related notes);

(v) 38B-D (addition'allcomparative information);

(vi) 40A-D (requirements for a third balance sheet);

‘(vii) 111 (cash flow statement information); and
~(viii) 134-136 (capital management disclosures);

The following paragraphs-of IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’:

(i) therequirements of the second sentence of paragraph 110 (qualitative and quantitative
information about contracts .with customers, significant “judgements, changes in

. judgements in applying this standard to those contracts, and assets recognised from the

costs to obtain or fulfil a contract);

(ii) paragraph 113(a) (revenue recognised from contracts with customers)

(iii) paragraphs 114 and 115 (disaggregation of revenue);

(iv) paragraph 118 (changes in.contract asset and liability);

(v) paragraphs 119(a) to (c) and 120 to 127 (performance obllgatlons) and~

(vi) paragraph 129 (practical expedients);

IAS 7, ‘Statement of cash flows’; A

Paragraph 30 and 31 of IAS 8 ‘Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates ‘and

errors’ (requirement for the disclosure of information when an entity has not applied a new-

_IFRS that has been issued but is not yet effective);

. Paragraph 17 and 18A of IAS 24, ’Related party disclosures’ (key management
compensation); '
. The requirements in 1AS 24, ‘Related' party dlsclosures to disclose related party transactlons
entered into between two or more wholly owned members of a group. .

" As the consolidated financial statements of Unilever PLC includes equivalent disclosures, the

Company has also taken the exemptions under FRS 101 available in respect of the following
disclosures where applicable:

Certain disclosures required by IAS 36 Impairment of assets in respect of the impairment of
goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets; .

Disclosures required by IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for %ale and Discontinuéd Operations
in respect of the cash flows of discontinued operations; ~

Certain disclosures required by IFRS 3 Business Combmatlons in respect of business -
combinations undertaken by the Company; .

The Company proposes to contlnue to adopt the reduced dISC|OSU re framework of FRS 101 in its
next financial statements ‘

The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated been applied consistently
to all periods presented in these financial statements.
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Reglstered number 00029140
UNILEVER U.K. CENTRAL RESOURCES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

1.2

13

14

ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

CONSOLIDATION

The company is a wholly. owned subsidiary of Unilever PLC. It is included in the consolidated
financial statements of Unilever Group which are publicly available. Therefore, the Company is

-exempt by virtue of Section 400 of the Companies Act 2006 from the requirement to prepare.

group financial statements. These financial statements present lnformatlon about the company
as an mdnvndual undertakmg and not about its group.

MEASUREMENT CONVENTION

The financial statements are prepared on the historit:al cost basis except that the following
assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value: Financial assets and Financial liabilities.

GOING CONCERN

When preparihg financial statements, Management assesses the Company's ability to continue

"as a going concern. The Company shall prepare financial statements on a going concern basis

unless Management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease trading or has no
realistic alternative but to do so. When Manageme'ntl is aware, in making its assessment, of
material uncertainties related to.events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, the Company shall disclose those-

" -uncertainties. When the Company does not prepare financial statements on a going concern

basis, it shall disclose that fact, together with the basis on which it prepared the financial
statements and the reason why the Company is not regarded as a going concern.

Notwithstanding net current liabilities of (£267 592,608), as at 31 December 2022, the fmanaal
statements have been prepared on a going concern basns which the directors-consider to be

_ appropriate for the foIIowmg reasons.

The directors have prepared cash~flow forecasts for a period of at least 12 months from the date
of approval of these financial statements which indicate that, taking account of reasonably
possible downsides, the company will have sufficient funds, through funding from its ultimate

- parent company, Unilever PLC, to meet its liabilities as they fall due for that period.

Those forecasts are dependent on Unilever PLC providing additional financial support during
that period. ‘ .

Unilever PLC has indicated its intention to continue to make available such funds are needed by
the company for the period covered by the forecasts. As with any company placing reliance on
other.group entities for fmanaal support, the directors acknowledge that there can be no
certainty that this support will cpntmue although, at the date of approval of these financial
statements, they have.no reason to believe that it will not do so. Consequently, the directors
are confident that the company will have sufficient funds to continue.to meet its liabilities as
they fall due for at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements and
therefore have prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.
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Reglstered number: 00029140
UNILEVER UK. CENTRAL RESOURCES LIMITED . : :

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

15

1.6

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

' DISPOSAL

Any dispbsals that have occurred during the year have not been deemed by mahagement to
have had a material effect on the nature and focus of the reportmg entlty s operations and as

-such do not warrant disclosure as discontinued operations.

‘TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Tangible fixed assets under the cost model are stated at historical ‘cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management. :

The Company adds to the carrying amount of an item of fixéd assets the cost of replacing part

_of such an item when that cost is incurred if the replacement part is expected to provide

incremental future benefits to the Company. The carrying amount of the replaced part is-
derecognized. Repalrs and malntenance are charged to profit or loss during the period in which
they are mcurred

- Leased assets are measured at cost less depreciation and accumulated impairment losses

adjusted for any lease liability remeasurements. The Company has not capitalised leases which -
are short term of 12 months or less or leases of assets which are low value. This primarily include
Ieases of IT equipmeht, office equip'ment, furniture and fitting and other peripheral items.

' Depreciation is provided ona stralght Ime basis from the commencement date of the lease to

the end of the lease term.

Right-of use aSsets are subject to review for impairmeht if triggering events or circumstances
indicate that this is necessary. If-an'indication of impairment exists, the asset or cash generatmg
unit recoverable amount is estimated and any impairment loss is charged to the income
statement as it arises. When a lease Ilablllty is remeasured the related nght -of-use assets is
adjusted by the same amount. .

Depreciation is charged to the Profit and Loss Account so as to allocate the cost of assets less
their residual value over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.

The estimated useful lives range as follows:

Freehold buildings: " 40 years
Computers: ’ - Syears
Leasehold buildings: . Term of lease
Plant and machinery: 10-15 years
Motor vehicles: -~ : 4-6 years

- Freehold land is not depreciated.
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Reglstered number: 00029140
UNILEVER U.K. CENTRAL RESGURCES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
'FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

1.7

: ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

The assets' residual values, useful lives an'd_depreciatioh methods are reviewed, and adjusted
prospectively.if appropriate, or if there is an indication of a significant change since the last
reporting date. :

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the .proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised within " Profit on disposal of fixed assets ' in the Profit and Loss
Account. : : :

Finance costs incurred in relation to the purchase of tangible fixed assets are not. cabitaliéed.

Fixed assets will be reviewed for impairment only if there is'an indication that impairment has
occurred. Impairment losses are recognised in the Profit and Loss ‘Account included within
operating profit under the appropriate statutory heading and disclosed as an exceptional item
if appropriate. The reversal of past impairment losses is recognised when the recoverable

“amount of a tangible fixed asset has increased because of a change in economic conditions orin

the expected use of the asset.
IFRS 16 - LEASES

The Company has adopted IFRS.16 Leases in its reporting from 1 January 2019, applying the
standard using the ‘full retrospective’ approach. In recognising and measuring lease assets and
liabilities on the balance sheet, the-Company applied judgement in determining whether each
contract is or contains a lease. This included an assessment about whether the contract depends
on a specified asset, whether the Company obtains substantially all the economic benefits from
the use of that asset, and whether the Company has the right to direct the use of that asset. The
Company also exercised judgement in determining the lease term as the non-cancellable term
of the lease, together with the .impact of options to extend or terminate the lease if it is
reasonably certain to be exercised.

Recobnition and measurement of IFRS 16 assets and liabilities

IFRS 16 changes the recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure of leases. In

“particular, it requires lessees to record all leases on the balance sheet with exemptions available’
_for low value and short-term leases. At the commencement of a lease, a lessee recognises lease

payments (lease liability) ahd an asset representing the right to use the asset during the lease

" term (right-of-use asset) (“ROUA”). Lessees subsequently reduce the lease liability when paid
~and recognise depreciation on the right-of-use asset. The right- of-usé asset is initially measured
. at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments.
-made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an

estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying

" asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives recenved

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost 'using the effective interest method. It is

remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an mdex
or rate The remeasurement normally also adjusts the rlght -of-use asset.
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1.8

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The standard-has no impact on the actual ¢ash flows of a company. However, the standard

_requires the capitalisation, and subsequent depreciation, of costs that were previously expensed

as paid which impacts disclosures of cash flows within the cash.flow statement. The amounts
previously expensed as operatmg cash outflows are instead capltallsed and presented as
financing cash outflows. - '

"The Company has recognised all leases on its balance sheet upon transition to IFRS 16, except

for short-term leases (less than a year) and leases for low-value assets. The impact of adopting
IFRS 16 on the Company'’s financial statements is further detailed in note 3. The impact of
adopting this standard on the cashflows of the Company have not been presented as the

- Company has taken advantage of the exemptlon avallable under FRS 101 with respect to -

presentatlon of cashflows.

" When the Company is an intermediary lessor, it accounts for its interest in the head lease and

the sub-lease separately. It assesses the leasé classification of a sub-lease with reference to the-
right of use assets arising from head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head

lease is a short-term lease to which the Company applies the exemptuon as described above,’

then it classifies the sub-lease-as an operatlng Iease :

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Research and development

Expendlture on research activities is recognised in the income statement as an expense as -
incurred.

- Expenditure on development activities is capitalised if the product or process:is technically and

commércially feasible and the Company intends to and has the technical ability and sufficient -
resources to complete development, future economic benefits are probable and if the
Company can measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its
development. Development activities involve a plan or design for the production of new or
substantially improved products or processes. The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads and-capitalised borrowing

~ costs. Other development expenditure is recognized in the income statement as an expense as

incurred. Capitalised development expenditure is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and less accumulated impairment losses. '

* The Company incurs Research and development cost on products and internally developed

software’s. For products, research and development cost are accounted for in the income
statement as the company does not track the development phase separately from the research .
phase. For internally generated software, the company capltallses the development cost as
given above. ‘ oy
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1.9

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Amortisation

Amortisation is charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of intangible assets unless such lives are indefinite. Intangible assets with
an indefinite useful life, not yet available for use and goodwill are systematically tested for

‘impairment at each balance sheet date. Other intangible assets are amortised frOrn the date-

they are avallable for use. The estlmated useful Ilves of software are 3 to 5 years.

Refer to note 1.12 for the impairment of. non-flnanC|aI assets. .

" FINANCIAL INSTRUM‘ENTS

Financial assets : :
Financial assets are recognlsed when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the mstrument ,

On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognised at fair value. In case of financial assets which
are recognised at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost is recognised in
the statement of prefit ‘and loss. In other cases, the transaction costs that are directly
attributable to.the acquisition or issue of the fmancnal asset are adjusted in the value of fmancaal

: asset

Fmanaal assets are subsequently cla55|f|ed and measured at:
- amortised cost ' :
- fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

~ - fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

‘Financial Liabilities : ' 1

Financial Inablhtles are initially recognised at fair value Iess any dlrectly related tﬁ{ansactlon costs.
Other financial liabilities, excluding derivatives, are subsequently carried at amortised cost, with .
the exception of financial liabilities which the group has elected to measure at fair value through
proflt or Ioss

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fanr value
with all changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Non-derivative financial instruments :
Non-derivative financial instruments comprise investments in equity instruments, trade and
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and trade and other payables. Trade and other

. receivables are recognised initially at-fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured a_tl amortised cost using the effective -
interest method, less any impairment losses. Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognltlon they are measured at amortlsed cost usmg the
effective interest method. : :
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1.11

112

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

"CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without

" penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments that
“mature in no more than three months from the date of acquisition and that are readily -

convertible to known amounts of cash with |n5|gn|f|cant I’lSk of change in value.
STOCKS

Stocks are stated-at the lower of cost and net realisable value, being the estimated selling price -
less cos_ts to complete and sell. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis.

Provisions are made for slow movmg and obsolete stocks as appropriate. The |mpa|rment loss is
recogmsed |mmed|ately in the Profit and Loss Account.

IMPAIRMENT EXCLUDING STOCKS, INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Financial assets

An expected credit loss (ECL) model is used for calculating impairment on financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss. A loss event does not have to occur before credit losses are
recognised. For trade receivables, the calculation methodology considers expected Iosses based .
on agemg profile. :

A financial asset not carried at fair v'alue'th'rough pro_fit or loss‘is assessed at each reporting date

to determine whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired

if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estlmated future cash ﬂows of that
asset that can be estimated reliably.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as
the difference between its carrying amount and the présent value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. For financial |nstruments-
measured at cost less impairment, an impairment is calculated as the. difference between its
carrying amount and the best estimate of the amount that the-Company would receive for the
asset if it were to besold at the reporting date. Interest on the impaired asset continues to be
recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event causes the
amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through

profit or loss.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is any indication of . lmpalrment If any such indication exists, then

‘the asset’s recoverable amount is estlmated
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1.13

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell. In assessmg value .in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value usmg a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market -

- assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of

impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “Cash-Generating Unit”).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its

estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the Profit and Loss Account.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the units, and then to reduce the carrymg amounts of the

-,other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.

In respect of other assets, impairment’losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each
reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does .
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of deprecuatlon .or
amortusatlon if no |mpa|rment loss had been recognised.

PROVISION FOR LIABILITIES
Provisions are. made where 4an event has tak’e‘nA place that gives the Company a Ieg{al' or

constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefit, and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. :

~ Provisions are charged as an expense to the Profit and Loss Account in the year that the

Company becomes aware of the obligation and are measured at the best estimate as at the

" balance sheet date of the expendituré requwed to settle the obllgatuon taking into account

relevant risks and uncertainties.

" When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the balance

- 1.14

sheet. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected futu re cash flows at a pre-tax rate
that reflects risks specific to the liability. : :

‘FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION -

Functional and presentation currency

The company's functional and presentatlonal currency is GBP.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the Company’s. functlonal currency at the
foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are retranslated to the functional
currency at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
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1.16

1.17

1.18

- ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) -

that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non- -monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined. Foreign exchange
differencés arising on translation are recogmsed in the Profit and Loss Account (except for
differences arising on the retranslation of quallfymg cash flow hedges, which are recogmsed in

" Other Comprehenswe Income).

TURNOVER

Turnover excludes value added tax and is royaltles and service fees recelved from Group
companies. Unilever U.K. Central Resources Limited recogmses turnover based on the criteria of
a full performance of a contract or delivery 6f servnces

The company’s activities consist solely of the provision of services and undertaking research in
the United Kingdom, so no segmental analysis of the business is included in these accounts.

DIVIDENDS

Equity'dividends are recdgnised when they become legally payable. Interim equity dividends are
recognised when paid. Final equity . dividends. are recognised when approved by the
shareholders at an annual general meeting. Dividends on shares recognlsed as liabilities are
recognised as expenses and cIaSS|f|ed within interest payable

INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE

Interest income and expense are recogmsed in the Profit and Loss Account using the effective

interest method.

. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

Share-based payment arrangements in which the Company receives goods or services as
consideration for its own equity instruments are accounted for as equity-settled share-based
payment transactions, regardless of how the equity instruments are obtained by the Company.

The grant date fair value of share-based payments awards granted to employees is recognised
as an employee expense,. ‘with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in WhICh the:

- employees become unconditionally entitled to the awards. The fair value of the awards gra nted

is measured using an option valuation model, takmg into account the terms and conditions upon
which the awards were granted. The amount recognised as-an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are
expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the
number of awards that do meet the related service and non-market performance conditions at
the vesting date. For share-based payment awards with non- vesting conditions, the grant date -

.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

 fair value of the share-based payment is measured to reflect 'such conditions and there is no

true-up for differences between expected and actual outcomes.

Share-based payment transactions in which the Company receives goods or services by incurring

" a Iiébility to transfer cash or other assets that-is based on the price of the Company’s equity

instruments are accounted for as cash-settled share-based payments. The fair value of the
amount payable to employees is recognised as an expense, with a corresponding increase in
liabilities, over the period in which the empleyees become unconditionally entitled to payment.
The liability is' remeasured at each balance sheet date and at settlement date. Any changes in

. the fair value of the liability are recognlsed as staff cost in the Profit and Loss Account.

Under the Unllever Performance Share PIan the employees of the Company are granted an

‘ .award of the Ultimate parents’ shares by the Company itself. Therefore, these options are.

acco_unted for as cash settled share-based payments under IFRS 2 ‘Share-based payments”. For
these cash settled share-based payments, the fair value of the liability is determined-at each.
balance sheet date and the charge is recognised through the Profit and Loss Account over the
period in which the related services are provided by the employees.

The Company operates a Share Matching Plan (Management Co-Investment Plan (“MCIP"))

which enables managers to-invest part of their annual bonus in Unilever PLC shares. which will
be matched by the Company with the same number of shares. The managers. are required to
keep all shares for an agreed period and be employed by Unilever on the vesting date. Given
these conditions, the expense of awardlng these shares is based on the fair value of the shares
at the date that the award is made and spread over the vesting period.

" At each balance sheet date, the Company revises its estimates of the number of options that are.

1.19

expected to vest. It'recggnises the impact of the ljevisio'n to original estimates, if any, in the Profit
and Loss Account, with a corresponding adjustment to trade and other payables.

' Unilever' PLC grants.eptions over its shares to eligible employees under an Employee Share Save

Scheme. In consideration-of Unilever PLC granting options to its employees, the Company has

- agreed to contribute its share of the cost of holdmg the shares. The right to receive dividends

on shares held by the Trust has been waived.

.~

PENSIONS AND OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

_ Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post employment beneflt plan under Wthh the company pays
fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructlve obllgatl_on to pay
furthef amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are
recognised as an expense in the Profit and Loss Account in the periods during which services are
rendered by employees. - : :

Defined benefit plans
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" ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.

" The Company’s: net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans (and other post-

employment benefits) js- calculated (separately for each plan) by estimating the amount of
future benefit that employees-have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods; that benefit is- discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan

_assets (at bid price) are deducted. The Company determines the net interest on the net defined. .

behefit liability/(asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined
benefit obligation at the begmmng of the annual period to the net defmed benefit
Ilablllty/(asset) :

The dl_scount rate is the yield at the reporting dete on bonds that have a credit rating of at least
AA that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Company’s obligations and that are -
denominated in the c‘urrency in which the benefits are expected to be paid.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit plans comprise actuarlal gains and losses, the -
return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset. cellmg (if any, excluding

" interest). The Company recognises them |mmed|ately in other comprehensive income and all
other expenses related to defined benefit plans in employee benefit expenses in the Profit and

Loss Account.

The calculation of the defined benefit obligations is performed by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Company, the
recognised asset is limited to the présent value of benefits available in the form of any future
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions and takes into account the adverse

:effect of any'minimum funding requirements.

The operating and financing costs of the defined benefit plans are recognised separately in the

Profit and Loss Account; service costs are systematically spread over the service lives of
employees, and financing costs are recognised in the periods in which they arise. Variations from
expected costs, arising from the experience of the plans or changes in the actuarial assumptions,
are recognised immediately in the statement of other comprehensive income. The costs of '
individual events such-as past service benefit enhancements, settlements and curtailments are
recognised immediately in the Profit and Loss Account. The liabilities and the assets of defined
benefit plans are recognised at fair value in the Balance Sheet.

CURRENT AND DEFERRED TAXATION

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
Profit and Loss Account except to the extent that it relates to iterns recognised directly in equity
or other comprehensive income, in WhICh case it is recognlsed dlrectly in equnty or other
comprehensive income. :
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
using tax rates enacted.or substantively enacted at the balance §heet date, and any adjustment

to tax payable in respect of previous years.

. Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The

following temporary differences are not provided for: the initial recognition of goodwill; the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit other

“than in a business combination, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the

extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax
provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount

- of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet

date. For investment property that is measured at fair value, deferred tax is provided at the rate
applicableto the sale of the property except for that part of the property that is deprecuable and
the company 's business model is to consume substantially all-of the value through use. in the
latter case the tax rate applicable to income tax is used. :

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised or that the Company has
determined it is appropriate to recognise the deferred tax asset as it is recoverable due to the
fact that the Company is part of a UK group for group rellef purposes.

DERIVATIVES AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING

" Derivatives are measured at fair value with any related transaction costs expensed as incurred.

The treatment of changes in the value of derivatives depends on their use as explained below.

" Cash Flow hedges

Derivatives are.held to hedge the uncertainty in t|m|ng or amount of future forecast cash flows.
Su_ch derivatives are classified as being part of cash flow hedge relationships. For an effective
hedge, gains and losses from changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognised in equity.
Cost of hedging, where material and opted for, is recorded in a separate account within equity.

Any ineffective elements of the hedge are recognised in the Profit and Loss account. If the

hedged cash flow relates to.a non-financial asset, the amount accumulated in equity is
subsequently included within the carrying value of that asset. For other cash flow hedges,
amounts deferred in equity are taken to the Profit and Loss account at the same time as the
related cash flow.

When a derivative no longer qualifies for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss remains
in equity until the related cash flow occurs. When the cash flow takes place, the cumulative gain

“or loss is taken to the Profit and Loss Account. If the hedged cash flow is no longer expected to

6ccur, the cumulative gain or loss is taken to the Profit and Loss Account immediately.
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1.23

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants received on capital expenditure are initially . recognised within deferred
income on the Company's Balance Sheet and are subsequently recognised in- Profit and Loss
-Account on a systematic-basis over the useful life of the related capital expendlture

‘Grants fo'rreve'nue expenditure are presented as part of the Profit and Loss Account in the
periods in which the expenditure is recognised. :

NEW STANDARDS, AME‘NDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIGNS OF EXISTING STANDARDS THAT
ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE AND HAVE NOT BEEN EARLY ADOPTED BY THE COMPANY i

All standards or a_me'ndm'ents to standards that have been issued under FRS 101 and are
effective from 1 January 2023 onwards do not have material impact on the Company.

v
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» JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and -
other factors including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. T

The cbm pany makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a sugmflcant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
- of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

Defined benefit pension plan assets are measured at fair value. Where these assets cannot be
valued directly from quoted market prices, the Company applies judgement in selecting an
appropriate valuation method, after discussion with an expert fund ma'nager. The assumptions
used in valuing unquoted investments are- affected by current market conditions and trends,
which could result in changes to the fair value after the measurement date. Details of the ’
carrylng value of the unquoted pension plan asset classes can be found in Note 18.

Recognition of pensi‘on'surplus —Where there is an accounting surplus on a defined benefit plan,
management uses judgement to determine whether the Group can realise the surplus through
refunds, reductions in future combinations or a combination of both. -

Impairment of trade receivables

" The Company makes an estimate of the recoverable value of the trade receivables. When
assessing impairment of trade receivables, Management considers factors including the ageing
profule of receivables and historical experience. The |mpa|rment provision estimation uses the
expected credlt loss model under IFRS 9. ‘ :

Measurement of defined benefit obligations

. The valuations of the Company'’s defined benefit pension plan obligations are dependent on a
number of assumptions. These include discount rates, inflation, and life expectancy of scheme
members. Details oftnese assumptions and sensitivities are in note 18.

Recogn/tlon and measurement of IFRS 16 assets and liabilities

The Company adopted IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019. In recognising and measurmg lease assets and
liabilities on the balance sheet, the Company apphed judgement in determining whether each
contract is or contains a lease. This included an assessment about whether the contract depends .
on a specified-asset, whether the Company obtains substantially all the economic benefits from
the-use of that asset, and whether the Company has the right to direct the use of that asset. The
Company also exercised judgement in determining the lease term as the non-cancellable term
of the. lease, together with the impact of optlons to extend or terminate the Iease if it is
reasonably certain to be exercised.
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TURNOVER .
' 2022 2021
£000 £000
International costs charged out to group companies 1,012,722 933,739
Research costs - Colworth charged out to group companies 56,199 . 54,735
Research costs - Port Sunlight charged out to group 145,637 136,031
companies : i . )
UEIT costs charged out to group companies . 336,719 292,913
Profit mark - up reclass and true up 28,914 24,263
Total 1,580,191 1,441,681
4. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
The operating loss is stated after (debiting)/crediting:
‘ Note 2022 2021
£000 ' £000
Exchange adjustments 1,676 2,964
Depreciation’
-'on owned tangible fixed assets ‘ © (9,296) (6,761)
- on tangible fixed assets held under leases {14,569) (13,420)
Auditors’ remuneration , - (174) " (170) -
Amortisation of intangible assets ’ 1. {172,207) {(179,876)
Research and development expenditure* ' (207,138) (191,929)
Marketing and development costs (142,220) (141,099)
Staff costs 6 (293,290) - (248,423)
Lease expenditure (Net). ‘ ' 12B ,
- plant and machinery “ (2,127) 1,326
- land and buildings 4,688 (2,604)
Operating exceptional items — restructuring costs ..(19,213) (8,098)
Operating exceptional items — curtailment gain ~~ * 18" - (180) (766)
Reversal/ (impairment) on trade receivables ' : 4,318 (1,214)
Other administrative costs** (552,933) (696,302)
Administrative expenses (1,402,665) (1,486,373)

*mcludes an amount of £10, 856 078 -(2021: £11,311,859) pertain to depreaatuon and
£91 084, 663 (2021: £90, 762 ,990) pertains to staff cost.

**Effectlye 2021, the Company has en_tered_mtoan agreement by virtue of which the Company
would be charged for certain unrecovered costs pertaining to the Home care/Beauty and
personal care (HC/BPC) division by Unilever Europe Business Centre B.V (“the agreement). The'sg )
unrecovered costs represent under recoveries/service results of centralized Unilever functions
“that benefit the entire group (global services) such as a) central services - Leadership, markéting,
customer development, supply chain, finance, HR etc. and b) Uniops (Unilever Operations) -
which repreésents services to enable growth through technology, data and services intrinsically
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‘linked across Unilever. These unrecovered costs, pertaining to the HC/BPC division, would be
allocated and charged based ona dwrsronal split that represent the underlying d|v15|ons wh|ch
- have generated these under recoveries.

It was recognised already at the time of entering into the agreement that the Company might
not be the most appropriate entity to bear these results from a financial and taxation
perspective.-In consideration of this, the transactions transferring the unrecovered costs to the
Company were included in a request for advance tax certainty from the UK and Netherlands tax
authorities in a Bilateral:Advance Pricing Agreement (“BAPA”) application filed on 14 April 2022.
In this application it was mentioned that it is the intention that as part of that BAPA submission
an agreement would be reached with respect to the exact company(res) that should receive the
unrecovered costs aforementloned

Subseduent to the balance sheet date on 4 Jan 2023, the Company entered into memorandum

~ of understanding with Unilever PLC and other affected parties stating that if the outcome of the .

‘.agreement to be reached in the context of this BAPA, or at such earlier moment as mutually
agreed and determined by the parties to the agreement, that an entity(ies) other than the
Company is the most appropriate entity(ies) to bear the services results, then in addition to all
prospective results being transferred to that entity(ies) by, UEBC going forward, all results
_ previously transferred by UEBC to the Company effective 1 January 2021 under the agreements
will be transferred to that entity(ies) as weII

On 25" September 2023, based on an agreement with Unilever PLC and other effected parties,
it has been agreed that that all of the unrecovered costs in the aforementioned agreement
would in the end be allocated to Unilever PLC and none ‘would be borne by the Company.and
hence no charge on account of unrecovered costs has beenrecorded:in the fmancral statements.
Additionally, an amount of £116 million booked on account of this agreement in FY 2021 has
been reversed in the current year. : A

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

. 2022 2021

£ £
Audit of these financial statements . ) 53,000 52,787

The fees for KPMG LLP for the statutory audit of the Company's annual financial statements
amount to £53,000 (2021: £52,787). The fees borne by the Company and payable to the
Company's auditors for the audlts of other Group Companies amount to £121,535 (2021:
£127 126)

The disclosure of feés payable to the auditors and their associates for other (non-audit) services
has not been'made because the consolidated financial statements of the Company’s ultimate
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‘-parent company are required to dusclose other {non- audlt) services on a consolldated basns as
-appropriate. :

STAFF COSTS AND EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

The 2 average number of persons employed by the Company (including Durectors) during the year,
analysed by category, was as follows

2022 . . 2021

. Numberof = Number of
- employees . employees
Research and development ; L 4 1,355 1,350
-Administration - ) ‘ S : 1,620 . 1,745
Total o , : 2,975 ' 3,095
'Staff costs, incl‘uding Directors’ remuneration, were as follows:
Note ' 2022 - 2021
: ) £000. . £000
Staff costs " i S o .
Wages and salaries } ‘ 213,566 . 164,89 .. .
Share based payments ' o 19 20,262 25,286
_-Social security costs ' B o 33,425 . - 34,864
Other pension costs L » © 26,037 . 23,377

Total - ’ : 0 293,290 248,423

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Dlrectors who served durmg the year are remunerated by the Company and detarls of their
emoluments are provided below :

All Directors ' o 2022 | 2021

£000 : £000
Aggregate emoluments - o ' . 1,732 . 1,403 _
. Aggregate pension scheme contributions 60 34

" 5 Directors (2021: 5 Directors) exercised share optlons or received shares under long-term

incentive schemes. Retirement benefits are accruing to 2 Dlrectors (2021 2 Dlrectors) inrespect . . -

“of their qualufymg services under a defined benefit scheme.

Highest paid Director L 2022 : 2022
o : | £000 ©  £000
Aggregate emoluments’ o 672 318
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K

" In addition to the above the hlghest pald Dlrector also recelved shares as partof a Iong term -

" incentive scheme .

8. PROFlT/(LOSS)'ON DISPOSAL OF FIXED ASSETS
The 4prc_uﬁt on disposal of fixed assets is made up as follows:

Note 2022 2021

£000 - £000
Yearly release (spread over the 20- -year lease i 16 1,796 1,796
agreement) from deferred income of the profnt on . -
the sale of Unilever House o S
Other* , : . : o (3,978) . (1,015)
Profit on disposal o R ’ S (2182) 781 .

*Qther mcludes the dlsposal of right of use assets..
9. INTEREST RECEIVABLE/(PAYABLE) AND SIMtLAR INCOME/(CHARGES)

2022 - 2021

£000 - £000 -

Interest recelvable on loans and current accounts 2,367 A 15,437

_ with group'undertakings . . ‘ L
Other interest receivable and similar income ‘ 15,719 7,852

. Total interest receivable and similar income e - 1808 . 23,289
Interest payable on Ioans and current accounts . (28,923) (6,286)

* with group undertakings _ o B
Exchange differences on interest payableon - - E -
balances with group undertakings (net) ' . _

' _Interest on loans from third parties ' R - o (1,613)
Finance charges payable under leases T - {4,203) _ (4,009)
‘Other interest payable and similar expense ) (8,470) 10,698
Total interest payable and similar charges ‘ (41,596) . S (1,208)
Total S ' c (23,510) 22,081

10. TAXATION
The taxation (charge)/Credit is made up as follows: -
‘Recognised in the Profit_andlosé Account . 2022 ' 2021
: : : : : ' ‘ £000 - £000
"UK corporation tax . o
Current tax on income for the year . (21,786) . (12,522)
Adjustments in respect.of prior perlods : . (17,932) .. 7151
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Fore/gn taxation
~Current tax on income for the year

Total current tax

. Deferred tax :
QOrigination and reversal of temporary
differences _
Effects of changesin taxrates =
Adjustments in respect of prior periods

Total deferred tax

Tax charge on profit from ordinary
activities S

" Income’ . tax " recognised in  other

comprehensive income

Effective portion of chénges in fair value. of -

cash flow hedges

Remeasurements of defined benefit
liability/asset

Impact of Global Performance Share Plan
Deferred Tax impact of tax rate change on
oy ) =
Short term tem porary dlfference
Other - .
Income tax recognised ' in other
comprehensive income . :

(626) (1,978)

. (40,344) (7,349)
3,626 (5,440
22,73(% _ 13,768 .
1,908 1,694

28270 | 10,6224

(12,074) 2,673
2022 - 2021 |

 £000 £000
‘“’077-) E '7,53i_
© (169,195) 227,515
| (26i ©. 206
(53,430) 127,839

(23(;3,728)' 361,799

The UK rate of corporation tax will increase from 19% to 25% from 1 April 2023. This will havea
consequential impact on the company’s future tax charge. Therefore, any deferred tax balances -
have been remeasured at the tax rate to be applied when temporary differences are expected

to reverse

" Thecu rrent tax assessed for the year is lower (2021: lower) than the standard rate of corporatlon :
taxatlon in the UK of 19% (2021 19%) The dlfferences are explamed below: ‘

Recon'ciliatioh'of tax expense
Profit-/ (Loss) for the year
Total tax (expense)/credit

Tax using the UK corporation tax rate of 19% (2021: 19%)

2022 2021
£000 £000
197,674 (4,936)
(12,074) - 2,673

' (37,558) 938
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Effects of: , = .

. Non-deductible expenses . ‘ ’ . (836) 816
Effects of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions - (507) {1,602)
Difference in tax rate for deferred tax o 1,908 13,768

- Over / (Under) provided in prior years (current tax) " {17,932) 7,151
(Uhder) provided in prior years (deferred tax) - - 22,736 1,694
Items affecting deferred tax only ' ’ o 1,984 © (583)
Separation of Tea Business C ’ : (4,696) . 2,006
Super deduction expenditure : <770 . 542
Transfer Pricing Adjustments ’ - 22,057 ' (22,057) -

- Total tax (expense)/ credit ' o . ' (12,074) - 2,673

11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

‘Software Development costs " Total

‘ £000 . - £000 . £000
Cost . -
At 1 January 2022 - : A
- ' ' 1,645,521 117,055 1,762,576
Addition , o - - 188,970 188,970
Transfer ' o 212,559. - {215,427) (2,868)
~ Disposal . . ' 667 ' - 667
At31 December 2022 1,858,747 90,598 1,949,345
Amortisation . - ‘ : v - ' :
At 1January 2022° ‘ (1,314,347) Co- (1,314,347)
Charge for the year o (172,207) - - (172,207)
Disposal . . . (264) _ . (264)
At 31 December 2022 Co (1,486,818) ) S - (1,486,818) -
Net book value . - .
At 31 December 2022 371,929 . 90,598 462,527 -
At 31 December 2021 : - 331,174 L 117,055 448,229
12. TANGIBLE ASSETS
Note _ 2022 - 2021
' £000 - £000
Owned assets ' . a : 12.A ’ 89,879 " 101,173
Right of use assets - ’ - 128 72,791 87,645

Total C e B ' 162,670 188,818
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12.A OWNED ASSETS

" As at 31 December 2021

- Land and Plantand  .Computer Motor Assets under Total
buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles  construction . .
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost . S . a .
At 1 January 2022 53,385 215,295 : 139,194 21 . 25,585 433,480
* Additions - 578 ,191 - 10,973 11,742
. Disposals (323) " (3,853) (7) - (1,521) (5,704)
Transfers 35 4,067 - 6,735 - (11,103) (266)
At 31 December 2022 53,097 216,085 146,113 21 23,935 = 439,251
Accumulated
depreciation L . : : : ,
At 1 January 2022 (26,016)  (169,442) - (136,828) (21) - (332,307)
Depreciation charge (1,987) (12,428) (6,411) —_— - . (20,826) .
Disposals 35 3,720 7 - - 3,762
Transfers - C- - - -
At 31 December 2022 (27,967) ~  (178,148) (143,234) . (21) - (349,371)
" Net book value
At 31 December 2022 25,129 37,937 2,879 - ’ 23,935 89,880
At 31 December 2021 27,369 45,853 2,366 - 25,585 - 101,173
12.B  RIGHT OF USE ASSETS . ’
Land and Plant.and Total
. buildings machinery
£000 . £000 © £000
Cost 4 ‘
At 1 January 2022 262,717 284 263,001
Additions . 675 38 713
Disposals - (2,584) (31) (2,615)
Transfers . - - , -
At 31 December 2022 260,808 - 291 © 261,099
Accumulated depreciation : )
At 1 January 2022 -{(175,178) (178)  (175,356)
Depreciation charge .. (10,564) (70) (10,634)
Impairment (3,260) - (3,260) -
Disposals 926 16 942
Transfers : - - -
At 31 December 2022 (188,076) (232) (188,308)
Net book value ’ .
. At 31.December 2022 72,732 ' 59 72,791
. 87,539 106

87,645
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13,

14,

In 2004, the Company entered into a séie-andl-léaseback agreement with a third party regarding
the Head Office in London, United Kingdom. From 2004 to 2007 the Head Office was refurbished,
and the Company was able to use the building again as from 2 July 2007 onwards. As the

" agreement de facto was a lease, the building was reinstated as an"asset for an amount of ‘

£123,491,000. The gain of £37,676,157 (being £39,892,151 sale less incurred expenses of
£2,215,994) on the initial sale was treated as deferred income and is being released over the
term of the lease agreement (i.e. 20 years from the date the Company moved back into the
building through to the termination date: 28 September 2027). The building is being deprecnated '
over the 20-year period commencmg 2 July'2007.

The Company incurred (£6,059,371) for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: £1,279,219)
towards expenses relating to short-term leases and leases of low value assets classified under in
Lease expenditure {Net) in Note 4. The total cash outflow for leases is £23,851,930 for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: £16 540,125), including cash outflow for short- term and low
value léases. The Company has lease term exten5|on optlons that are not reflected in the
measurement of lease liabilities.

Refer to note 14 for lease receivables of the sub-lease arrangement.

INVESTMENTS
2022 2021
£000 £000
Cost : . ' .
At 1-January 2022 ' , - 295 .. 516
At 31 December 2022 . ‘ : - 516
Net book value - 4 : '
At 31 December 2022 _ . - 295
At 31 December 2021 L ' 295 516
- TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2022 2021
o £000 . £000
_Due after more than one year ,
Amounts owed by Group undertakings s 495,114 114,820
Less: Impairment loss on trade ‘and other o (456) (4,774)
receivables . ' ’ '
. Prepayments and accrued income ) : , - 7,586 15,802
Other receivables* : ‘ E " 15,183 . 16,181
- Total - : L ' - 517,827 - 142,029
Due within one year .
Trade receivables _ : : . 7,888 454
Amounts owed by Group undertakings : 89,998 160,996

(including accrued interest)
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Forward contracts owed by Group o - - . 23,825
undertakings - , ' .
‘Other taxation and social security ' . 34,814 36,254
Other receivables* : ' : 12,790 3,936

. Prepayments and accrued income o © 70,156 . 46,147
Cash at bank o ' - 94
Total o ‘ 215,646 . 271,707
Total I . : 733,073 413,736

*of which £11 738, 944 (2021: £14,221 785) relates to Iease recelvables

Trade and other recelvables are stated after provnsnons for |mpa|rment loss of £455, 811 (2021:
£4,774,000) that arose on amounts: receivable from group undertakings. The impairment.
. provision required under IFRS 9 was calculated using 12-month expected credit losses.

Amounts. due from Group undertakings, due within one year (including accrued interest),
include a concern loan of Nil (2021: £24,014,647) and £90,713,043 (2021: £86,031,572) to TIGI
International Limited and Brooke Bond Assam Estates Limited respectively. The loan to Brook
Borid Assam Estates has a maturity date in 2023. '

The Company uses foreign exchange derivatives to hedge the currency risk. The Company is
amongst others exposed: to the currency risk in relation to the monthly euro receipts from
"Unilever Europe Business Centre BV. These receipts relate to’ the existing pooling agreement
whereby Unilever Europe Business Centre BV and UKCR agreed to share the international costs.

The Company hedges this currency risk on a 12-months rolling basis. Each month the Company )
buys £80,000,000 versus Euro. At 31 December 2022, none (2021: Twelve) of these monthly FX
covers to hedge these pooling receipts had a positive market value.

The notional amount of these covers amounts to €1,104,826,634 (2021: €1,109,270,000). The -
year-end value of the contracts amounted to (£24,774,776) (2021: £23,822,824).

-Amounts owed by Group undertakings primarily include balances with Brooke Bond Assam
Estates Limited, Unilever Europe Business Centre BV which are interest bearing, unsecured and
payable on demand. There is no intention to recall the repayment of the outstanding balance .
wnthm a yearas of 31 December 2022.

Leases as a lessor
Finance Leases

The following amounts have been recognlsed in profit or loss in respect of flnance leases for
which the Company is a lessor: :

B . . .
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2022 2021

£ : £
Finance leases . _ . .
" Interest income on lease receivables = 303,024 523,770

The following table sets out a maturity analysis of lease payments receivable, showing the
undiscounted lease payments to be received after the reporting date:

- 2022
B : £
. Finance leases - o 4
i Less than one year ' . : ) : 2,825,000
Between one and two years . o » 2,825,000
. Between two and three years . . 2,825,000
Between three and four years : ' _ 2,825,000
Between four and five years o ' - . 2,118,750
More than five years A ' S
Total undiscounted lease receivable a ’ . ' 13,418,750
Unearned finance income o (1,679,806)
Net investment in the leases’ i o 11,738,944
15. 'DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
- Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:
Assets  Assets Liabilities Liabilities = Net - Net
2022 - 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 - £000 £000 £000 . £000
Employee benefits — S - {400,772) (616,281) (400,772) (616,281)
pension o » - ' o . ‘
Tangible fixed assets 3,451 1,154 - - 3451 1,154
Intangible assets - 148,907 132,276 . - - 148,907 132,276
Leases ‘ T 749 1,303 - T 749 1,303
‘Short term temporary 19,310 12,465 - - 19,310 12,465
_“differences (“STTDs”") S ‘ _
Other ' ' 21,645 - - (2,625) 21,645 (2,625)

Net deferred tax 194,062 147,198 (400,772) (618,906) (206,710) (471,708)
(liabilities) / assets : : ,

The amount of temporafy differences in respect of losses for which no deferred tax asset is
recognised is £8,580,926 (2021: £<1.3,349,433). . .

~ The UK rate of corporation tax will increase from 19% to 25% from 1 April 2023. This will have a’
consequential impact on the company’s future tax charge. Therefore, any deferred tax balances
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have been remeasured at the tax rate to be applied when temporary differences are expected

to reverse.

Movement in deferred tax during the year:

(24,826)

1 January. Recognise,d' - Recognised 31
2022 in profit instatement. December .
and loss of other 2022
account ~ comprehensi '
ve income )
. i - £000 £000 £000 £000
Employee benefits — pension - - (616,281) (7,116) 222,625  (400,772)
Tangible fixed assets (owned assets) ' 1,154 2,297 - 3,451.
Tangible fixed assets (right of use assets) 1,303 (554) - " '749
Intangible assets ~ . A 132,276 116,631 - 148,907
Short term temporary differences 12,465 6,819 26 19,310
Other . (2,625) 10,193 ' 14,077 21,645
Total deferred tax asset (net) ~ (471,708) . 28,270 236,728  (206,710)
Movement in deferred tax during the prior year:
1 January Recognised' Recognised 31
2021. inprofitand instatement December
" loss account ofother 2021
: ¢omprehensi - J '
ve income
- £000 £000 £000 £000
Employee benefits — pension (242,119) (20,062) (354,101). (616,281)
Tangible fixed assets {owned assets} : 4','496 (3,342) Co- 1,154
Tangible fixed assets (right of use assets) C1,711 (407) - 1,303
Intangible assets ' 102,872 29,404 - - - 132,276
- Short term temporary differences © 8,229 4,403 . (167) 12,465
Other ' 4,380 - 26 (7,531) (2,625)
Total deferred tax asset (net) . {119,931) 10,022 (361,799) (471,708)
16. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES .
S C : 2022 2021
A £000 "£000
Amounts falling due within one year . ’
Bank loans and overdrafts (4,233) (320)
Trade creditors | : (389,063) (362,150)
Amounts owed to Group undertakings (89,999) - (850,127) -
Other creditors - » (88,109) ' (71,208)
Accruals and deferred income (107,739) © (97,175)
Lease liabilities . " (19,999) " (19,009)
"Forward contracts owed to Group undertakings -
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Group relief'payable to related parﬁes . (118,846) ‘ (66,979)
Corporation tax due to HMRC ' _ (124,789) (139,146)

Total | v , (967,603) . (1,606,107)

Amounts falling due after more than one year o ) - L
Deferred tax liability . " (206,711) .. (471,709)

" Accruals and deferred i |ncome A ' : (16,220) {16,220) .
Lease liabilities - ' "~ (94,481) ' (114,379)
Amounts owed to Group undertaklngs ~ (2,087,018) (1;238,083)
Other Creditors - E (17,980) - ' : -
Total = . _ , 7 (2,422,410) (1,840,390)
Total trade and other payables - (3,390,012) ~(3,446,497)

Amounts due to Group undertakings, falling due within one year and more than one year,
“include current account balances from many Group undertakings and are interest bearing,
unsecured and repayable on demand. Amount due to Group Undertakings, falling due after
more than one year (including accrued interest), include a concern loan of £90,713;043 (2021: '
£86,032,570)-to Unilever Finance International AG. These loans have a maturity date in 2023.

* . Accruals and deferred income include the u'hamortised balance of a deferred profit on the sale

"of Unilever House in 2004: amounts due within one year £1,796,179 (2021: £1,796,179);
. amounts due within 1 to-2 years £1,796,179 (2021: £1,796,179); amounts due within 2 to 5
. years; £5,388,'538 (2021: £5,388,537); amounts’due after 5 years £316,655 (2021: £2,112;835).

The Company uses foreign exchange derivatives to hedge the currency risk.. The Company is

- amongst others exposed to the currency. risk in relation to the monthly euro receipts from

“Unilever Europe Business Centre BV. These receipts relate to the existing pooling agreement
whereby Uniléver Europe Business Centre BV and UKCR agreed to share_the international costs.
The Company hedges this currency risk on.12 months rolling basis. Each month the Company
buys £80,000,000 versus Euro. At 31 December 2022, none (2021: twelve) ofthese monthly FX
covers to hedge these poolmg recelpts had a posmve market value. :
The notional amount of these covers amounts to €1,104,826,634 (2021: € 1,109,270,000). The
contracts mature between January and December 2022. The year-end value of the contracts
amounts to (£24,774,776) (2021: £23,822,824): ‘ '

Lease commitments are the future cash out flows from the lease contracts which are not
recorded in the measurement of lease liabilities. These include potential future payments
related to leases of low value assets, leases which are less than twelve months, variable leases,
extension -and termination options and Ieases not yet commenced but which*we have
committed to.
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- 17,

12022 2021
£000 £000
" Amounts fallmg due wuthm 1to2. years :
Accruyals'and deferred income ' (3,592) (6323)
Lease liabilities ' ' (6,779) (19,825)
Total (10,371) - (26,748)
‘Amounts falling due within2to 5 yeérs
Accruals and deferred income {11,868) {5,389)
Lease liabilities (51,336) (53,197)
Total -(63,204) (58,586)
Amounts falling due after S years
Accruals and deferred income - (760) (3,909)
Lease liabilities ‘ (36,366) (41,357)
Total (37,126) (45,266)
PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND OTHER CHARGES
Amounts falling due within one year
Restructuring Legal Other Total
proviSion - provision provision . o
. £000 £000 . £000 °  £000 -
At 1 January 2022 (1,251) (120) (3,982) (5,353) -
Charged to Profit and Loss Account (18,637) - (25,002) (43,639)
Utilisation - 8,748 - 7129 15,877 -
At 31 December 2022 (11,140) (120)  (21,855) (33,115) .~
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Restructuring Legal Other Total -
provision provision  provision
£000 £000  £000 £000.
" At1January 2022 (12,195) ~(330) - (12,525)
Charged to Profit and loss account ) "~ (576) o - © (576)
Utilisation 1,753 23 - - 1,776
At 31_December 2022 (11,018) (307) - (11,325)

Restructunng continued at the research Iaboratones at Port Sunllght Colwonh and at UEIT (all

in the United ngdom) during 2022.
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18.

PENSIONS AND.SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS

All related assets and liabilities of below mentioned pension schemes are shown in the company - -
and provide benefits to employees of Unilever PLC:and its subsidiary companies in the UK.

(a) UUKPF: The Company is a member of a Grdup pension scheme providing benefits based on
covered earnings for employees of Unilever PLC and its subsidiary companies in the UK. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from the Group in an independently administered
fund known as the Unilever UK Pension Fund (UUKPF). Actuarial advice is provided by a firm
of Consulting Actuaries and valuation reports are produced annually. The latest report
available is for 2022. ’

The investment strategy is impiemented within the framework of the statutory requirements
of the UK. The Company has developed policy guidelines for the allocation of assets to
different classes with the objective of controlling risk and maintaining the right balance
between risk and long-term returns in order to limit the cost to the Company of the benefits
provided. To achieve this, investments are well diversified, such that the failure of any single
investment would not have a material impact on the overall level of assets. The plans
continue to invest a good proportion of the assets in equities, which the Company believes
offer the best returns over the long term commensurate with an acceptable level of risk. The ‘
plans expose the Company to a number of actuarial risks such as investment risk, interest
rate risk, longevity risk and inflation risk. There are no unusual entity or plan specific risks to
the Company. For risk control, the pension fund also has significant investments in liability
matching assets (bonds) as well as in property and other alternative assets; additionally, the
Company uses derivatives to further mitigate the impact of the risks outlined above. The
assets are managed by a number of external fund managers. A

Unilever has a pooled investment vehicle (Univest) which it believes offers its pension plans
around the world a simplified 'externally managed investment vehicle to-implement their
strategic asset allocation models, currently for bonds, equities, and alternative assets. The.
aim is to provide high quality, well diversified, cost-effective, risk-controlled vehicles. The.
pension plans' investments are overseen by Unllevers internal mvestment company, the
Univest Company.

(b) UNIAC: The UNIAC Pension Fund provides benefits to certain employees who have expatriate

service. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund known as the UNIAC Fund. The plan liabilities are covered

. by a Buy-in insurance policy and liability driven fixed income securities. Actuarial advice is
provided by a firm of Consulting Actuaries and valuation reports are produced annually. The
latest report avallable is for 2022. ~

- {c) Unfunded arrangements: In addition to the funded pension schemes described above,
- provisions are held in the accounts of the Company with respect to ex-gratia and top up "

pensions granted by Unilever PLC and its subsidiaries in the United Kingdom and also for

special contractual early retirement benefits granted to selected employees of these-
companies. Provisions are also held in respect of pension promises for UK employees worklng

in countries in the European Union.
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.

The capital costs of unfunded retirement benefits for employees of Unilever U.K. Central
Resources Limited retiring before hormalr retirement age are charged to the Profit and Loss -
Account in the year in which the decision to retire an employee is made. In addition, where
employees work for other subsidiaries of Unilever in the UK, provision is also made for the
ex-gratia benefits granted to these employees. Unilever U.K Central Resources Limited
reteives consideration equal to the capital/service cost of these benefits for accepting
responsibility for their payment In subsequent years, interest credited to the provisions is
charged in the com pany's Profit and Loss Account. Ex-gratia benefits are being funded via the -

. Unilever UK Pension Fund with a contribution being made by the employmg company to the
Fund equal to the capltal cost of the beneflts :

‘The liability and Ievel of service/capital costs are assessed by Censulting actuaries for the ex-
gratia and early retirement schemes and valuation reports are produced annually The Iatest -
reports avalla ble are for 2022. : :

: in addition to the above, provisions‘ are also held for post-employment healthcare for early
retired Managers of the company and for past and present Directors of Unilever PLC. The

-figures also include provisions for employee long service awards which are accrued over the
period of their employment. Over the period, Unilever made business changes resultingina
number of active members leaving the UUKPF and a curtailment loss. of £180k has been
recognised. The decrease in |Iabl|lty caused by:the change has been recognized as a past
service credlt : -

2022. ' . 2021
o - , -£000 ‘ . £000
Defined benefit asset : ' 7,613,609 -+ 12,025,627
Defined benefit {liability) . - " (6,010,520) _ (9,560,500) .
Net asset,fdr defined benefit obligations . : 1,603,089 2,465,127
(see following table) o '
Cash-settled share-based payment i A
- transactions liability . S ' .
Total erhployee benefits obligation - 1,603,089 K 2,465,127

A surplus is deemed recoverable to the extent-that Unilever can benefit economically from
the surplus. -Unilever assesses the maximum economic benefit available: through a
combination of refunds and reductions in future contributions in accordance with local

. legislation and-individual financing arrangements with each of our funded defined beneflt-
plans. :
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Movements in net defined benefit (Iiability)/a§set

T At1 January -

" Included in profit or loss

Current service cost

Expected return on assets

. Curtailment gain/(loss)

" Past service credit
Interest cost

Included in OCI

Actual less expected return’

Actuarial (loss)/gain arising
from:

- Change in financial
assumptions

- Change in Demographic

- Experience adjustment

Other . .
Contributions paid by the
employer

Contributions paid by the
employee

Benefits paid

At 31 December 2022 -

Defined benefit obligation

Fair value of plan assets

Net defined benefit

" (liability)/asset N

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 ‘ 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 .

- {9,560,500) (10,016,434) . . 12,025,627 11,290,740 2,465,127 1,274,306
v (73,672) . (109,027) - - {73,672) (109,027)
c- - 224,430 - 155,118 224,430 ‘155,118

180 (766) - - - 180 (766) -
{178,590) (137,996) - - (178,590) {137,996)
(252,082) (247,789) 224,430 _ 155,118 (27,652) " (92,671)
- - " {4,258,369) © 922,513 (4,258,369) 922,513
3,603,46-0‘ 193,391 - - 3,603,460 193,391
922 (247) - ) 922 (247)
(236,512) © 81,793 e - (236,512) 81,793
3,367,870 274,937 (4,258,369) 922,513 (890,499) 1,197,450
- - 44,533 . 74,386 44,533 74,386

- - - Co211 - 211
434,192 428,785 (422,512) (417,341) 11,580 + 11,444
434,192 ' 428,785 (378,079) (342,744) 56,113 86,041
(9,560,500) 7,613,609 12,025,627 1,603,089 2,465,127

(6,010,520)
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Plan assets

2021 .
£000

.1,422,108
'358,988

1,781,096

5,234,655

2,186,842

7,421,497

889,674
1,452,320
325,664
79,015
76,360

2,823,033

, ' | 2022
o : _ . '£000
Public equity ' S , : 241,331
Private equity R , . 451,628
Equities : . ' - 692,959
Governmental bonds Lo - 3,349,140
‘Non-governmental bonds - , o 1,716,336
Bonds _ - 5,065,476
‘Property o - 781315
Cash . g 1,127,807
Hedge funds _ o .- 204,091
Derivatives . ‘ (294,797)
Insurance Contracts and others 56,758
Other , 1,855,174
. Total market value of assets - o ' 7,613,609

" 12,025,626

The Group uses derivatives and other instruments to hedge some of its exposure to inflation and
interest rate risk — the degree of this hedgmg of I|ab|I|t|es was 100% for interest rate and 100% '

_ for mflatlon for the UK plan

. The fair values of .the above equity and fixed income instruments are determined based on

quoted market prices in active markets: The fair value of private equity, properties, derivatives, -
hedge funds and insurance contracts are not based on quoted market prices in active markets.

Funded and unfunded defined benefit bb/igati_ons at 31 December 2022 -

Funded plans - Funded plans Unfunded

" Total’

. A ' (insurplus)  (indeficit) ‘plans. (all plans)
Total defined benefit asset. ) A ' 7,613,609 - - 7,613,609
Total defined benefit liability (5,815,210) - (195,310) (6,010,520)
Net asset for defined benefit obligations 1,798,399 - {195,310) 1,603,089
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Actuarial assumptions
The following are the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date:

*

2022 ° 2021 . 2020

Discount rate for DBO 5.0% 1.9% 1.4%
Discount rate for Service Cost R 5.1% 2.0% 1.5%
Inflation assumption for DBO 3.1% 3.2% 2.7%
Inflation-assumption for Service Costs ’ 2.6% 2.9% 2.5%
Rate of increase in salaries " 3.6% 3.7% 3.3%
Rate of increase in pensions - o 29% . 3.1% . 2.7%

Demographic assumptions, such as mortality iates,'are set having regard to the latest trends in
life expectancy (including expectations for future improvements), plan experience and other
relevant data. The assumptions are reviewed and updated as necessary as part of the periodic
actuarial valuation of the pension plans. . ' :

With the exception of UNIAC, the company’s mortality assumptions as at "year end make no
explicit allowance for potential effects of COVID-19. It is a reasonable approach given there
remains some uncertainty of the COVID-19 impact on long term mortality rates for pension
scheme members. Any change to the demographic assumptions to these schemes would only
take place once the Unilever UK Pension fund funding valuation as at 31 March 2022 has been

- completed. :

This year of use S3 series all pensioners ("S3PMA“ and “S3PFA_M") tables have been adopted,
which are based on the experience of UK pension-schemes over the period 2009-2016. S"caling
factors are applied reflecting the experience of our pension funds appropriate to the member's
gender and status. Future impfoyements in longevity have been allowed for in line with the 2018
CMI core projections (Sk = 7.0 and “A” parameter = 0.0%) and a 1.0% pa long-term improvement
rate. The allowance for future improvements in relation to UNIAC only has been updated from-
 the CMI 2020 model to the CMI 2021 model to reflect the latest available industrydata. An
adjustmen't has been made to the future improvements assumption to allow for the potential
impact of COVID-19 on this scheme’s membership data. : ‘

Life expeciancy for a pensioner:

2022 . 2021

Years - Years

Male : - . 22 .22
Female ' . 24 23

Life expectancy for future retiree upon reaéhing 65 - ,

. 2022 2021
, - Years Years
Male = - : o - 23 . . 23

_ Female ) i ) : : i 25 25
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Sensitivity analysis ' _ _
The sensitivity of the overall pension liabilities to changes in the key assumptions are:

Change in assumption ‘ 2022 2021
Discount rate for DBO _ Increase by 0.5% (2021: 0.5%) 6% 8%
Discount rate for Service Costs . Increase by 0.5% (2021: 0.5%) - -12% CA17%
Inflation assumption for DBO Increase by 0.5% (2021: (_J.S%) . 4% . - 7%
Inflation assumption for Service Costs Increase by 0.5% (2021: 0.5%) - 6% 13%

One year increase in life expectancy BS Increase by 1 year 4% ' 6%

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of

the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and may not be

representatlve of the actual change It is based on a change in the key assumption while holdmg

all other assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivity to the assumption, the.same

method used to calculate the liability recogm'sed‘m the balance sheet has been applied. The

methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensiti\)ity analysis did not.change

compared with the previous period. Although the analysis does not take account of the full,

distribution of cashflows expected under the plan it does provnde an approx:matlon of the
sensmvuty of the assumptlons shown. :

Funding

The plan is externally funded. The operation of the plan is governed by local regulations and
practice in the UK, as is the nature of the relationship between the Company and the Trustees
- and their composition. As Trustees are in place to operate the plans, they are generally required
‘to act on behalf of the plan’s stakeholders. They are tasked with periodic reviews of the solvency
~of the fund in accordance with local legislation and play a role in the- Iong-term investment and

~ funding strategy. The Company also has an internal body, the Pensions and Equity Committee,

that is responsible for setting the company’s policies and decision making on plan matters,
-including but not limited to design, funding, investments, risk management and governance.

The company expects to pay £41,317,000 in contributions to its defined benefit plan in 2023 in

respect of ongoing accrual and £11,709,000 in respect of direct benefits (direct from the.
-¢company). The weighted average duratlon of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the

reportlng period is 13 years. .
Defined contribution plans
The Company operates a number of defined contribution pension plans.

The total expense relatlng to these . plans in the current year was £21,842,000 (2021
£17 187,000). The total expense expected in 2023 is £25 200 000
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19.

SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

’The Company contrlbutes the costs of the below mentloned Share Based Payment schemes.

granted by Unilever PLC to eligible employees. .

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had the following share based compensatlon pIans

Performance Share Plans

Performance share awards are made in respect of the ,Perform_ance share plans (“PSP”) and the .
Management Co-Investment Plan (“MCIP”). The awards of each plan.will vest between 0% and

200% of grant level, subject to the level of satisfaction of performance measures. Under the PSP, *

Unilever’s managers receive annual awards of PLC shares. The performance measures for PSP
are underlying sales growth, underlying operating margin, and cumulative operating cash flow
for the Group, although PSP awards to certain managers below Unilever Leadership Executive
level may be subject to similar performance measures specific to their business unit. There is an

- additional target based on relative total shareholder return for senior executives. PSP awards

will vest after three years. From 2017, the MCIP: allows Unilever’s managers to invest. a
proportion ‘of their annual bonus (a maximum of 60% for Executive Directors, 100% for other
managers) in shares in Unilever, and to receive a correspondmg award of performance related

. sharés. MCIP awards will vest after four years.

A summary of the status of the Performiance Share Plans as at 31 December 2022 and charges
du ring the year are given below: :

" Unilever PLC shares'

2022 : 2021
‘At1January - 2,662,457 2,790,848
Awarded’ o S 978,582 - 655,642.
Vested : ‘ A (292,412) (435,180)
Transferred ‘ ) _ ‘ ‘ (888,755) (348,852)
At'31 December . . B ’ 2,459,872 2,662,457

Shares 3+1

A global employee share plan open applicable to the work level two and below. Eligible’
employees can invest between £20 and £156 per month to buy investment shares. For every
three investment shares purchased by an employee, Unilever awards one free share Share 3+1

- awards will vest after three years.

_Thecharge to the Profit and Loss Acceunt for MCIP/Transition and Shares 3+1in 2022 amounted

to £20,261,578 (2021: £23,376,958).
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' 'T‘he fair value' of the award in 2022 was £41.82 (2021 £39.45) per-PLC share, based on the
" market value at the year end, and the total liability ‘as at 31 December 2022 was £41, 389 418 -
(2021: £47 936 040)

Restncted Shares Plan

.In specific one-off cases, a number of executives are awarded the right to receive PLC shares at
a specified date in the future, on the condition that they are still employed by Unilever at that
time. The amount to be paid to the company by. partlapants to obtain the shares at vestlng is
zero

20. - CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

2022 2021

- £000 7 £000
Allotted, called up and fully pa|d s v -
100,000,000 (2021 '100,000,000) Ordmary shares of £1 each X 100,000 - 100,000

21, OTHER' FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

~ ‘The Company has the following financial commitments relating to outsourcing of finance -
. -operations, human resourcing, and information technology:

2022 2021
£000 £000
Outsourcing contract commitments . o . ‘ o 219,176 - 271,415
Total other financial commitments - . 219,176 271,415
' Of which due: . : .
- Lessthan oneyear - : 113,184 - 114,413
- Between one and five years . , 105,9§2 ©. 157,002
Total . o A 219,176 271,415
22.  CAPITAL COMMITMENTS -
: : 2022 2021
‘ _—_ £000 . £000 .
Capital expenditure that has been A C 2,240 " 2,488
contracted for but has not been provided ' :
for in the financial statements o :
Total : ' 2,240 2,488
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23.

. 24,

CONTROLLING PARTY

The ultimate perent company and controlling party is Unilever PLC and the immediate holding
company is Unilever U.K. Holdings Limited, both companies incorporated in the England and
Wales. The Company has not disclosed transactions with fellow, wholly owned subsidiaries in
accordance with the exemption under the terms of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 24

-"Related party disclosures" as the ultimate parent company produces. publicly available

consolidated financial statements. Copies of Unilever Group financial statements can be publicly

‘obtained from Unilever PLC, Corporate Secretaries Department, 100 VlCtOI‘Ia Embankment
London EC4Y ODY and www.unilever.com.

. PARENT COMPANY SUPPORT

Unilever PLC ‘has indicated its intention-and ability to continue to provide support to allow the
Company to continue at its current level of operations for the foreseeable future.
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